# Ancillary Services – Fee Based Services

2024-29 Service Offering



#### Disclaimer

TasNetworks (which, for the purposes of this disclaimer, includes all of its related bodies corporate, its officers, employees, contractors, agents and consultants) makes no representation or warranty (express or implied) as to the accuracy, reliability, or completeness of the information contained in this document, or its suitability for any intended purpose. TasNetworks has no liability for any loss or damage (be it direct or indirect) arising out of, or in reliance on, any statements, opinions, information or matter contained in, or derived from, the information in this document.

Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd ABN 24 167 357 299 PO Box 606 Moonah TAS 7009

Enquiries regarding this document should be addressed to: Head of Regulation Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd PO Box 606 Moonah TAS 7009

# Contents

1	Intro	duction	5
2	Application of fee based services tariffs		7
	2.1	TasNetworks	7
	2.2	Goods and service tax (GST)	7
	2.3	Time zones	7
	2.4	Scheduled day for service delivery	7
	2.5	Request process	7
	2.6	Business day	7
	2.7	Field operational hours	7
	2.8	After hours fees	8
	2.9	Invoicing process	8
	2.10	Connection and alteration fee based services	8
3	Assigning and reassigning customers to fee based service tariff classes		
	3.1	Assigning customers to fee based service tariffs	9
	3.2	Re-assignment of customers to fee based service tariffs	9
4	Retail contract termination, de-energisation, re-energisation, energisation and special meter reads		
	4.1	General conditions	10
	4.2	Site visit – no appointment (Energisation, de-energisation, re-energisation)	10
	4.3	Site visit – no appointment (Special read)	11
	4.4	Site visit – non-scheduled visit	11
	4.5	Site visit – same day premium service	11
	4.6	Site visit – after hours	11
	4.7	Site visit – credit action or site issues	11
	4.8	Site visit – credit action pillar box/pole top	11
	4.9	Site visit – current transformer (CT) metering	12
	4.10	Site visit – pillar box/pole top	12
	4.11	Site visit – pillar box/pole top wasted visit	12
5	Mete	r testing	13
	5.1	Meter test – single phase	13
	5.2	Meter test – multi-phase	13
	5.3	Meter test – current transformer (CT)	13

	5.4	Meter test – after hours	13	
	5.5	Meter test – wasted visit	14	
6	Tee-up/appointment			
	6.1	Tee-up/appointment	15	
	6.2	Tee-up/appointment – after hours	15	
	6.3	Tee-up/appointment – no truck – after hours	15	
	6.4	Traffic Control	15	
7	Misce	ellaneous services	16	
	7.1	Open turret	16	
	7.2	Alteration to unmetered supply	16	
	7.3	Meter relocation (TasNetworks meter)	16	
	7.4	Administration	16	
	7.5	Network tariff change	16	
	7.6	Emergency maintenance contestable meters	17	
	7.7	Emergency maintenance contestable meters – after hours	17	
	7.8	Meter recovery and disposal	17	
	7.9	Miscellaneous service	17	
	7.10	Miscellaneous service – after hours	17	
	7.11	Miscellaneous service – wasted visit	17	
8	Basic connection establishment charges			
	8.1	Creation of a National Metering Identifier (NMI)	18	
	8.2	Overhead service, single span – single phase	18	
	8.3	Overhead service, single span – multi-phase	18	
	8.4	Underground service with turret/cabinet – single phase	18	
	8.5	Underground service with turret/cabinet – – multi-phase	19	
	8.6	Underground service with pole mounted fuse – single phase	19	
	8.7	Underground service with pole mounted fuse – multi-phase	19	
	8.8	Basic connection establishment – after hours	19	
	8.9	Basic connection establishment - wasted visit	19	
9	Temporary disconnection/reconnection charges			
	9.1	Disconnect/reconnect overhead service- single phase	20	
	9.2	Disconnect/reconnect overhead service – multi-phase	20	
	9.3	Temporary disconnect/reconnect – same day	20	
	9.4	Temporary disconnect/reconnect – disconnect or reconnect only	20	

9.5	Temporary disconnect/reconnect – after hours	20
9.6	Temporary disconnect/reconnect – wasted visit	20
Basic	connection alteration	21
10.1	Connection alteration – overhead single phase	21
10.2	Connection alteration – overhead multi-phase	21
10.3 to tur	Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground single ph ret	ase 22
	Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground single ph sNetworks' pole	ase 22
10.5 to tur	Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground multi-pharet	ase 22
	Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground multi-phas Networks' pole	ase 22
10.7	Augment single phase overhead service to multi-phase supply	22
10.8	Augment multi-phase overhead service to single phase supply	23
10.9	Augment single phase overhead service to underground supply (turret)	23
10.10	Augment multi-phase overhead service to underground supply (turret)	23
10.11	Augment single phase overhead service to underground supply (TasNetworks' pole)	24
10.12	Augment multi-phase overhead service to underground supply (TasNetworks' pole)	24
10.13	Basic connection alteration – after hours	24
10.14	Basic connection – wasted visit	24

## **1** Introduction

This document outlines the Ancillary Services – Fee Based Services offerings TasNetworks intends to propose as part of the 2024-2029 regulatory proposal and includes TasNetworks' terms and conditions for the provision of fee based services to be applied from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2029.

Fee based services are those services provided by TasNetworks where the service is, in general, provided for the benefit of a single customer rather than uniformly supplied to all customers, which means that the cost of providing that service is recovered from that customer, rather than the wider customer base. These services are provided upon request and are typically initiated by way of a service order received from a retailer on behalf of their customer or through submission of an electrical works request (EWR) and connection application form (when applicable).

For these services, instead of setting a revenue cap for TasNetworks, as is the case with the provision of standard control (general network) services, the Australian Energy Regulatory (**AER**) caps the prices that TasNetworks can charge for each service.

The service levels provided by TasNetworks for fee based services are outlined in Table 1. For further information please refer to TasNetworks' Service and Installation Rules<sup>1</sup>.

Service category	Service level	
Retail contract termination, energisation, de-energisation, re-energisation and special meter reads	Services will be performed on the scheduled date requested by the retailer, providing they do not involve any changes to the network, are submitted on a day the locality where the customer is located is due to be serviced (as per Schedule 1) and there is no minimum notification period required for an outage.	
Meter test	All meter testing will be delivered within 15 business days of receiving a retailer's service order, unless otherwise agreed.	
Supply abolishment	Supply abolitions will be carried out within 10 business days of receiving a service order from a retailer, unless otherwise agreed.	
Tee-up/appointment	TasNetworks personnel will attend on-site on the date and/or time agreed with the customer or third party requesting their attendance. Any service associated with a tee-up will be delivered on an agreed date rather than the timeframes indicated against the service category.	
Miscellaneous services	Miscellaneous services will be delivered within 10 business days of receiving a retailer's service order, unless otherwise agreed.	

#### Table 1: Service levels for fee based services

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See https://www.tasnetworks.com.au/Documents/Manual-documents/Contractors/Procedures,-standardsand-further-information/Service-Installation-Rules-V8-1

Connection establishment	Where an alteration to the network is not required, connection establishment will be delivered within 10 business days* from receipt of a valid Business to Business Electronic Request ( <b>B2B</b> ) service order from the customer's retailer, following the approval of a basic connection application and receipt of a valid EWR from the customer's electrical contractor.
	Where a cross-over service pole is required, connection establishment will be delivered within 50 business days* from receipt of a valid B2B service order from the retailer, following the approval of a basic connection application and receipt of a valid EWR from the customer's electrical contractor.
Temporary disconnection/reconnection	Temporary disconnections/reconnections will be delivered on a date agreed with the relevant parties.
Basic connection alteration	Where an alteration to the network is not required, a basic connection alteration will be delivered within 10 business days* from receipt of a valid B2B service order (where applicable), following the approval of a valid connection application (if required) and a valid EWR from the customer's electrical contractor, providing a tee-up is not required.

\* These timeframes do not include the installation of metering as this task is not TasNetworks' responsibility. The retailer can advise on timeframes for metering installation.

## 2 Application of fee based services tariffs

### 2.1 TasNetworks

All references to TasNetworks within this document unless otherwise stated, are to TasNetworks in its capacity as a licensed distribution network service provider in the Tasmanian region of the National Electricity Market (**NEM**) only.

## 2.2 Goods and service tax (GST)

The fee based services charges published by TasNetworks, unless otherwise stated, are exclusive of GST.

### 2.3 Time zones

Tasmania is part of the Australian Eastern Time zone. All times in this document refer to Tasmanian local time.

## 2.4 Scheduled day for service delivery

A scheduled day for service delivery is a day of the week that a particular locality is scheduled to be visited by TasNetworks personnel for the purposes of undertaking services such as retail contract termination, energisation, de-energisation, re-energisation, credit action or special meter reads, as per the service area calendar detailed in Schedule 1 of this Guide.

#### 2.5 Request process

TasNetworks' service order process aligns with jurisdictional B2B service order procedures. A B2B service order from a retailer is required for the provision of most fee based services.

Connections and alterations to the network may be initiated by the customer by means of TasNetworks' application process for basic connection services and will also require the lodgement and acceptance by TasNetworks of a EWR by a licensed electrical contractor. Information on the connection and alteration application process can be found on TasNetworks' website using the below link:

https://www.tasnetworks.com.au/connections-help

Applications can be submitted via TasNetworks' Connections Portal at:

https://connections.tasnetworks.com.au/account/login

#### 2.6 Business day

A business day is any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day which is a gazetted public holiday in any part of mainland Tasmania.

## 2.7 Field operational hours

TasNetworks' field operational hours are the hours between 7:30 am and 4:20 pm on a business day.

## 2.8 After hours fees

After hours fees apply where part or all of the work or travel associated with a service falls outside field operational hours.

## 2.9 Invoicing process

TasNetworks' manages the fee based services charging process via a dedicated team. This is typically done via the Service Order Management system using the applicable product codes. In these situations the charges will be issued in compliance with the jurisdictional distribution billing B2B protocols and the services will be invoiced via the customer's retailer. In some cases, however, TasNetworks may invoice a third party directly.

## 2.10 Connection and alteration fee based services

TasNetworks' connection and alteration fee based services, which can be found on TasNetworks' website,<sup>2</sup> sets out the connection and alteration services offered by TasNetworks. The agreement to deliver these services, as outlined in this Guide, is undertaken when:

- there is no minimum notification period required for an outage;
- there is unhindered access to the metering and connection servicing assets;
- there are no safety issues associated with the delivery of the service;
- the electrical contractor has performed work to agreed standards; and
- the network infrastructure required to facilitate delivery of the service is present.

Note: the installation of new meters is no longer performed by TasNetworks.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See <u>https://www.tasnetworks.com.au/Connections/Fees-connections-and-alterations.</u>

# 3 Assigning and reassigning customers to fee based service tariff classes

## 3.1 Assigning customers to fee based service tariffs

A fee based service is considered to be a tariff class under the National Electricity Rules (**Rules**). The Rules require TasNetworks to describe how customers are assigned to tariff classes.

TasNetworks assigns customers to fee based service tariff classes on the basis of the fee based service selected. Customers are assigned into one of the following fee based service tariff classes:

- retail contract termination, de-energisation, re-energisation, energisation and special meter reads;
- meter testing;
- supply abolishment;
- tee-up;
- miscellaneous services;
- connection establishment;
- temporary disconnection/reconnection; and
- basic connection alteration.

Customers may be assigned to at least one fee based service tariff class. Assignment to fee based service tariff classes is based on the type of service provided.

## 3.2 Re-assignment of customers to fee based service tariffs

Customers will not be reassigned to a different fee based service class for the provision of a fee based service.

## 4 Retail contract termination, de-energisation, reenergisation, energisation and special meter reads

## 4.1 General conditions

These services require an authorised officer of TasNetworks to visit a customer's premises to undertake a retail contract termination, de-energisation, re-energisation, and energisation or perform a special meter read (basic meters only). Special meter reads will only be performed on basic type 6 meters owned by TasNetworks. Unless otherwise advised by TasNetworks, these services will be performed on the scheduled date requested by the retailer with the exception of de-energisations, which are undertaken in a manner consistent with Rule 111 of the National Electricity Retail Rules (NERR). De-energisation without consultation with the customer will occur on a regular scheduled day for service delivery.

Unless specified, the services will be scheduled in the most efficient manner within TasNetworks' work schedule. If a service is required to be performed at a specified time, or the customer request consultation prior to attend, it will be treated as a tee-up service request. Section 7 of this document outlines the fees associated with tee-up services.

Retailer service orders received after 3:00 pm on any business day will be deemed to have been received the next business day. The cut off for same day connection before they are deemed to be after hours is 3:00 pm.

A scheduled day for service delivery is a day that the area in which the customer's premises are located is normally serviced by TasNetworks.

In accordance with rule 111 of the NERR, protected periods apply to de-energisations, during which deenergisations are not permitted. The protected periods are:

- a business day before 8:00 am or after 3:00 pm; or
- a Friday or the day before a public holiday; or
- a weekend or a public holiday; or
- the days between 20 December and 31 December (inclusive).

De-energisations that are requested to occur within a protected period will not be performed until that period has concluded, in accordance with rule 111 of the NERR, unless requested by the customer.

## 4.2 Site visit – no appointment (Energisation, de-energisation, reenergisation)

If no appointment is required, visits to customer premises during field operational hours to perform deenergisations, re-energisations, or energisations, will be undertaken on the regular scheduled day for service delivery in the locality in question. If no appointment is required, visits to customer premises during field operational hours to perform special reads, will be undertaken on the regular scheduled day for service delivery in the locality in question.

## 4.4 Site visit – non-scheduled visit

Where no appointment is required, visits to customer premises for the purposes of performing deenergisations, re-energisations, energisations or special read that are undertaken during field operational hours but requested to be carried out on a day that is not a regular scheduled day for service delivery will be treated as a non-scheduled site visit. Visits to customer premises during field operational hours where the visit is required on the same day as the retailer's request will also be treated as a nonscheduled site visit by TasNetworks before 11:00 am on that day.

## 4.5 Site visit – same day premium service

Visits to customer premises during field operational hours to perform a re-energisation or energisation, where no appointment is required but the visit is required on the same day as a retailer's request, will be classified as a same day premium service if the request from the retailer is received by TasNetworks after 11:00 am, and prior to 3:00 pm on that day. Requests received after 3:00 pm are treated as a Site visit – after hours.

## 4.6 Site visit – after hours

Visits to customer premises to perform a re-energisation or energisation where no appointment is required, the visit is required on the day of the customer's request and has been requested after 3:00 pm will be classified as an after-hours site visit.

## 4.7 Site visit – credit action or site issues

Visits to a customer's premises during field operational hours due to a credit issue or a request from a retailer that the site be de-energised without consultation with the customer, where no appointment is required and the requested date is on a day that is a regular scheduled day for service delivery, are classified as a site visit for the purposes of credit action or site issues.

Protected periods (as defined by the NERR) will apply in respect to this fee based service.

The fee for this service does not include costs which may apply for the repair of damaged equipment.

## 4.8 Site visit – credit action pillar box/pole top

Visits to a customer's premises during field operational hours to perform a de-energisation due to a credit issue, other than at the distribution point of attachment, switchboard isolation fuse or disconnect switch, where no appointment is required and the visit occurs on the regular scheduled day are classified as a pillar box/pole top credit action site visit.

Protected periods (as defined by the NERR) will apply in respect to this fee based service.

The fee for this service does not include costs which may apply for the repair of damaged equipment.

## 4.9 Site visit – current transformer (CT) metering

Visits to a customer's premises during field operational hours on a scheduled service delivery day to deenergise or re-energise a site where current transformer metering is in use are classified as current transformer (**CT**) metering site visit.

## 4.10 Site visit – pillar box/pole top

Pillar box/pole top site visits refer to a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to de-energise the site by means other than the point of attachment, switchboard isolation fuse or disconnect switch, without consultation with the customer and where no appointment is required.

Protected periods (as defined by the NERR) will apply in respect to this fee based service.

## 4.11 Site visit – pillar box/pole top wasted visit

This service applies to visits to a customer's premises during field operational hours to undertake a Site visit – pillar box/pole top where the service could not be completed due to issues at the customer's premises.

## 5 Meter testing

Meter testing services involve a visit to a customer's premises by an authorised officer of TasNetworks to undertake the testing of a TasNetworks owned meter(s) at the request of a retailer.

All services are to be delivered within 15 business days of TasNetworks' receipt of a completed retailer's service order, unless an alternative date for the service has been agreed.

Service orders received from retailers after 3:00 pm on any business day will be deemed to have been received on the next business day.

If a service is required to be performed at a specified time it will be treated as a tee-up service. Section 7 of this document outlines the fees associated with tee-up services. If customer consultation is required an additional tee-up service will be charged.

The charges for meter testing are applied per meter tested, as opposed to per electrical installation. The retailer is to provide details of the meter(s) for testing. If no details are received by TasNetworks regarding the specific meter(s) to be tested at a customer's premises, it will be assumed that all meters at the site are to be tested and charges will be applied to the testing of each meter.

No meter testing fee will apply if a meter is found to be faulty.

Where the provision of a meter testing service is unable to be undertaken due to issues at the customer's premises that are outside the control of TasNetworks, a Meter test – wasted visit fee may be charged.

## 5.1 Meter test – single phase

This service refers to a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to test a single phase meter at the request of a retailer, where no appointment is required.

## 5.2 Meter test – multi-phase

This service refers to a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to test a multi-phase meter at the request of a retailer, where no appointment is required.

## 5.3 Meter test – current transformer (CT)

This service refers to a visit to customer premises during field operational hours where no appointment is required, to test a CT meter at the request of the retailer.

## 5.4 Meter test – after hours

This service refers to a visit to a customer's premises, undertaken outside field operational hours at the request of the retailer and where no appointment is required, to undertake meter testing for single phase, multi phase or CT.

## 5.5 Meter test – wasted visit

This service refers to a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to test a meter at the request of the retailer where the test could not be completed due to issues at the customer's premises.

A Meter test – after hours fee will also be charged where a visit to test a meter at the request of the retailer occurs outside of field operational hours and could not be completed due to issues at the customer's premises.

## 6 Tee-up/appointment

A tee-up occurs when a customer's electrical contractor, retailer or third party requests that a TasNetworks service be provided at a nominated location at a specified date and / or time. Alternatively, a tee-up is required when a customer would like to consult at a specified date and / or time with TasNetworks personnel.

Where another service has been requested with a tee-up, the service will be provided on the negotiated tee-up date and the time limits referenced in this document no longer apply.

Tee-ups relating to services listed in all Sections other than Section 5 are to be requested by a retailer through the standard B2B process. A tee-up requested by an electrical contractor should be made via a EWR and will be invoiced by TasNetworks directly to the electrical contractor.

Tee-ups will be arranged following TasNetworks' receipt of all required documentation. TasNetworks will attempt to contact the party requesting the tee-up service within five business days of receipt of the required documentation. If contact cannot be made after three attempts, TasNetworks will request the customer's retailer to confirm the request for a tee-up service via B2B processes.

It should be noted that tee-up charges are in addition to the charges for the relevant service.

## 6.1 Tee-up/appointment

This service involves a tee-up with a TasNetworks crew where the appointment occurs during field operational hours.

## 6.2 Tee-up/appointment – after hours

This service applies to a tee-up with a TasNetworks crew where part of the work or travel time relating to the appointment falls outside field operational hours and the work to be completed requires attendance by a crew with a truck.

### 6.3 Tee-up/appointment – no truck – after hours

This service involves a tee-up with a TasNetworks crew where part of the work or travel time associated with the appointment falls outside field operational hours and the work to be completed does not require a crew with a truck.

## 6.4 Traffic Control

This service applies for the engagement of TasNetworks' traffic control contractor, in conjunction with the completion of another fee based service, to ensure the safety of TasNetworks team members and the community, for example when service conductor is installed over a roadway.

It should be noted that the traffic control charge does not include any other tee-up service.

## 7 Miscellaneous services

The following services fall into the category of miscellaneous services, which includes a range of services that require an authorised officer of TasNetworks to visit a customer's premise, as well as a number of administrative services which are provided without the need for a site visit.

All services will be delivered within 10 business days of TasNetworks' receipt of a service order, unless an alternate date for the service has been agreed.

For all Miscellaneous services, if a service order is not received by 3:00 pm on a business day it will be deemed to have been received the next business day.

Unless specified, the services will be scheduled in the most efficient manner within TasNetworks' work schedule. If a service is required to be performed at a specified time it will be treated as a tee-up service. Section 7 of this document outlines the fees associated with tee-up services.

Unless specified, the customer will not be consulted by TasNetworks prior to the work being undertaken. If customer consultation is required the service will be treated as a tee-up service.

Where the provision of a Miscellaneous service is unable to be undertaken due to issues at the premise that are outside the control of TasNetworks, a Miscellaneous service – wasted visit fee may be charged.

## 7.1 Open turret

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises to open a turret or cabinet during field operational hours. A tee-up will be required for this service.

## 7.2 Alteration to unmetered supply

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to add or remove a load on an existing unmetered supply site, where no appointment is required.

## 7.3 Meter relocation (TasNetworks meter)

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to relocate an existing TasNetworks meter to a new location where the point of attachment has not altered position, and where no appointment is required.

## 7.4 Administration

An administration charge will be levied when office work is required to be performed to complete a task requested by, or as a result of an error made by, a customer or service provider that is not described elsewhere in this Guide.

## 7.5 Network tariff change

This service applies to a change of network tariff where no site visit is required, and only administrative actions are involved.

#### 7.6 Emergency maintenance contestable meters

This service applies to visits to a customer's premises during operational hours to rectify a fault on an external metering provider's equipment or where an outage has been caused by the metering provider and TasNetworks has to restore power to the customer's premises.

### 7.7 Emergency maintenance contestable meters – after hours

This service applies to a visit to a customer's premises outside operational hours to rectify a fault on an external metering provider's equipment or where an outage has been caused by the metering provider and TasNetworks has to restore power to the customer's premises.

#### 7.8 Meter recovery and disposal

This service applies to visits to a customer's premises during operational hours to remove and dispose of type 5 or 6 meters at the request of the metering provider.

#### 7.9 Miscellaneous service

This service applies to visits to a customer's premises during field operational hours at the request of a retailer, to perform a service that is not described elsewhere in this Guide, where no appointment is required.

## 7.10 Miscellaneous service – after hours

This service applies to visits to a customer's premises outside field operational hours to perform any of the above-mentioned Miscellaneous services which has been requested by a retailer, where no appointment is required.

#### 7.11 Miscellaneous service – wasted visit

Visits to a customer's premises during field operational hours for the purposes of providing a requested Miscellaneous service where the service could not be completed due to issues on site, or where the crew was not required once on site will be classified as a Miscellaneous service – wasted visit and attract the appropriate fee. A Miscellaneous service – after hours fee will also be charged where part of the work or travel time associated with a wasted visit falls outside field operational hours and the work could not be completed due to issues on site.

## 8 Basic connection establishment charges

The connection establishment charges described below are for basic connection services that require TasNetworks to visit a customer's premises to establish a new customer connection. The connection service is in accordance with the customer's approved application to connect. Applications to connect must be lodged via TasNetworks Connections Portal<sup>3</sup>

A basic connection service is where the connection involes the installation of a single span of service wire and associated service fuses. Where the connection requires the installation of multiple spans of overhead service wire the connection is classed as a negotiated service and this section will not be applied. The customer will be required to follow TasNetworks' negotiated connection process and will have their charges determined in accordance with that process.

If no alterations to the network are required, basic connection services will be delivered within 10 business days of the receipt of a valid service order from the customer's retailer, unless an alternate date for the service has been agreed with TasNetworks. TasNetworks will also require a valid connection application and a valid EWR from the customer's electrical contractor before progressing with the work.

All services requiring a cross-over service pole will be delivered within 50 business days of TasNetworks' receipt of a valid connection application, unless an alternate date for the service has been agreed.

Further information, including our Electricity Connection Contract – Standard Terms & Conditions and connection types can be found on our website<sup>4</sup>.

## 8.1 Creation of a National Metering Identifier (NMI)

This service applies to the administrative activities associated with the creation of a NMI.

## 8.2 Overhead service, single span – single phase

This service applies to the installation of a single span of single phase overhead service wire (off a pole) and the associated service fuse.

## 8.3 Overhead service, single span – multi-phase

This service involves the installation of a single span of multi-phase overhead service wire (off a pole) and associated service fuses.

## 8.4 Underground service with turret/cabinet – single phase

This service involves the installation of a single phase underground service connecting a customer's consumer mains to the fuse located in a TasNetworks turret or cabinet.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> See https://connections.tasnetworks.com.au/account/login

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> See https://www.tasnetworks.com.au/Connections/Fees#newconnections

## 8.5 Underground service with turret/cabinet – – multi-phase

This service involves the installation of a multi-phase underground service connecting a customer's consumer mains to the fuses located in a TasNetworks turret or cabinet.

## 8.6 Underground service with pole mounted fuse – single phase

This service involves the installation of a single phase underground service connecting the customer's consumer mains to a fuse located on a TasNetworks pole.

## 8.7 Underground service with pole mounted fuse – multi-phase

This service involves the installation of a multi-phase underground service connecting the customer's consumer mains to the fuses located on a TasNetworks pole.

### 8.8 Basic connection establishment – after hours

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises outside field operational hours for the purposes of providing a basic connection service.

### 8.9 Basic connection establishment - wasted visit

This service applies to visits to a customer's premises to provide a basic connection service where the connection could not be completed due to issues at the site.

## **9** Temporary disconnection/reconnection charges

This service requires TasNetworks to visit a customer's premises to temporarily isolate an existing supply.

Where multiple NMIs are affected a Group Isolation is required and is not treated as a FBS. This will be assessed and costed as per TasNetworks' Ancillary Services – Quoted Services Application and Price Guide<sup>5</sup>.

## 9.1 Disconnect/reconnect overhead service- single phase

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to disconnect and reconnect an existing TasNetworks' single span of single phase overhead service wire.

### 9.2 Disconnect/reconnect overhead service – multi-phase

A visit to a customer's premises during operation hours to disconnect and reconnect an existing TasNetworks' single span of multi-phase overhead service wire.

## 9.3 Temporary disconnect/reconnect – same day

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to perform a temporary disconnection and reconnection that are both performed on the same day. This does not include the removal of a service wire and is for isolation only.

# 9.4 Temporary disconnect/reconnect – disconnect or reconnect only

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to perform a disconnection or reconnection only.

## 9.5 Temporary disconnect/reconnect – after hours

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises outside field operational hours to perform temporary isolation.

## 9.6 Temporary disconnect/reconnect – wasted visit

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours for the purposes of providing a requested temporary isolation where the service could not be completed due to issues on site or where the crew was not required once on site.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> See https://www.tasnetworks.com.au/Documents/Manual-documents/Pricing/2021-22/2021-22-Ancillary-Services-Quoted-Services-Applica

## **10 Basic connection alteration**

These services require TasNetworks to visit a customer's premises to alter or augment a customer's connection to the distribution network where that connection is categorised as a basic connection alteration service.

In a number of instances the basic connection alteration services will require TasNetworks to interrupt the supply of electricity to the customer's premises.

Basic connection alterations will be delivered within 10 business days of TasNetworks receiving a valid B2B service order (where applicable) or the receipt of both an approved connection application (where required) and valid EWR, unless an alternate date for the service has been agreed.

If the connection point has moved, and the existing service wire is long enough to reach the new connection point and remain compliant with relevant standards, the existing overhead service wire may be re-used.

In some circumstances a service may involve more than one type of basic connection service. For example, a job may require new consumer mains and an alteration to a connection.

Where an Electrical Contractor is altering the connection such as:

- Changing supply, for example, overhead to underground;
- Changing supply phases, for example, single phase to multi-phase (where multi-phase is available); or
- Moving the connection to a different TasNetworks' asset

TasNetworks requires the lodgement of a connection application<sup>6</sup>, an EWR alone is not sufficient.

The connection types referred to in this section have been included to assist customers link the description of the services offered to those used in the application to connect and the fees that are listed on our website<sup>7</sup>

## **10.1** Connection alteration – overhead single phase

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours for a single phase connection alteration following an alteration to the customer's installation. The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided.

## 10.2 Connection alteration – overhead multi-phase

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours for a multi-phase connection alteration following an alteration to the customer's installation. The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> See https://connections.tasnetworks.com.au/account/login

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> See https://www.tasnetworks.com.au/Connections/Fees#newconnections

## 10.3 Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground single phase to turret

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours for connection of new single phase consumer mains to the existing TasNetworks' distribution network following an alteration to the customer's installation.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection alteration service is being provided.

## 10.4 Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground single phase to TasNetworks' pole

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours for connection of new single phase consumer mains to the existing TasNetworks' distribution network following an alteration to the customer's installation.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while the basic connection alteration service is being provided.

## 10.5 Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground multi-phase to turret

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours for connection of new multi-phase consumer mains to the existing TasNetworks' distribution network following an alteration to the customer's installation.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection alteration service is being provided.

## 10.6 Connection of new consumer mains to an existing installation – underground multi-phase to TasNetworks' pole

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours for connection of new multi-phase consumer mains to the existing TasNetworks' distribution network following an alteration to the customer's installation.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection alteration service is being provided.

# 10.7 Augment single phase overhead service to multi-phase supply

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to disconnect and remove existing single span of single phase overhead service wire and the associated service fuse, and connect new single span of multi-phase overhead service wire and associated service fuses to the existing TasNetworks' distribution network. The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by

TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided. This service requires a connection to be lodged with TasNetworks.

# 10.8 Augment multi-phase overhead service to single phase supply

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to disconnect and remove existing single span of multi-phase overhead service wire and the associated service fuses, and connect new single span of single phase overhead service wire and associated service fuse to the existing TasNetworks' distribution network.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided. This service requires a connection application to be lodged with TasNetworks.

# 10.9 Augment single phase overhead service to underground supply (turret)

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to disconnect and remove existing single span of single phase overhead service wire and the associated service fuse, and connect new single phase underground consumer mains to the fuse located in an existing TasNetworks' turret or cabinet.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided. Customers also requiring the installation of a TasNetworks' turret or cabinet will be required to follow TasNetworks' negotiated connection process and will have their charges determined in accordance with that process. This service requires a connection application to be lodged with TasNetworks.

# 10.10 Augment multi-phase overhead service to underground supply (turret)

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to disconnect and remove existing single span of multi-phase overhead service wire and the associated service fuses, and connect new multi-phase underground consumer mains to the fuses located in an existing TasNetworks' turret or cabinet.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided. Customers also requiring the installation of an TasNetworks turret or cabinet will be required to follow TasNetworks' negotiated connection process and will have their charges determined in accordance with that process. This service requires a connection application to be lodged with TasNetworks.

# 10.11 Augment single phase overhead service to underground supply (TasNetworks' pole)

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to disconnect and remove existing single span of single phase overhead service wire and the associated service fuse, and connect new single phase underground consumer mains to a fuse located on a TasNetworks' pole.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided. This service requires a connection application to be lodged with TasNetworks.

# 10.12 Augment multi-phase overhead service to underground supply (TasNetworks' pole)

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises during field operational hours to disconnect and remove existing single span of multi-phase overhead service wire and the associated service fuses, and connect new multi-phase underground consumer mains to the fuses located on a TasNetworks' pole.

The customer's supply of electricity will be interrupted by TasNetworks while this basic connection service is being provided. This service requires a connection application to be lodged with TasNetworks.

## **10.13** Basic connection alteration – after hours

This service involves a visit to a customer's premises outside field operational hours to perform a basic connection alteration.

## 10.14 Basic connection – wasted visit

This service applies to site visits undertaken by TasNetworks to provide a basic connection service where the connection could not be completed due to issues at the site.